
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Susan Gardner, Democratic Services (01254) 380184 
Email: susan.gardner@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 13 March 2019 

Page 1 of 3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Council 
 
Thursday, 21 March 2019 at 7.00 pm, 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Mohammad Ayub (Mayor) in the Chair,  
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Clare Cleary, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, 
Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Michael Miller, Gareth Molineux, 
Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, 
Joyce Plummer, Kath Pratt, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Announcements   
 
 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 21st February 
2019. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

5.   Question Time   
 
To deal with any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 2.2(vi). 
 

6.   Draft Pay Policy  (Pages 15 - 26) 
 
To present a draft Pay Policy for 2018/19. 
 

7.   Appointment of Co-Optees  (Pages 27 - 30) 
 
To submit recommendations for Co-opted members on to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

8.   Sale of Clayton Triangle site - update from Overview & Scrutiny Committee Call-in  
(Pages 31 - 34) 
 

To report the findings of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee “Call-in” 
in respect of the sale of the Clayton Triangle site. 
 

9.   Minutes of Cabinet  (Pages 35 - 52) 
 
To receive the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on the 9th January 2019 and 6th 
February 2019 (attached). 
 

10.   Minutes of Committees  (Pages 53 - 64) 
 
To receive the Minutes of Committees and Sub-Committees, as set out below:- 
 
Rules of Debate 
 

 The Leader of the Council will introduce the Minute Book as a whole. 

 Any Member may raise any issue from the Minutes; the Chair of the relevant 
Committee may respond (5 Minutes). 

 The Leader of the Council will close the debate (5 Minutes). 
 

Meeting (Municipal Year 2018/19) 
 

Date 

 
Planning Committee 

 
23rd January 2019 

 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
12th February 2019 

 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Call-In) 

 
4th March 2019 

 

11.   Motion(s) submitted on Notice  (Pages 65 - 66) 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

To consider any Motions for debate in accordance with Council Procedure Rule A9. 
 

 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
Scaitcliffe House, 
Ormerod Street, 
ACCRINGTON BB5 OPF 
 
Wednesday, 13 March 2019 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

COUNCIL 

 
Thursday 21st February, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Mohammad Ayub (in the Chair), Councillors Judith Addison, 

Josh Allen, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, 
Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox, Munsif Dad, 
Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, 
Glen Harrison, June Harrison, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Gareth Molineux, 
Jenny Molineux, Tim O'Kane, Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, 
Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer and Kath Pratt. 
 

  

 
Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Clare Cleary, Marlene Haworth, 
Stephanie Haworth, Eamonn Higgins, Michael Miller, Jeff Scales and Paddy Short.  
 
 
Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
It was noted that all Councillors had been granted a dispensation to speak and vote in 
relation to setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government and Finance Act 
1992. 
 
 
Announcements 
 
The Mayor 
 

- The Mayor on behalf of the Council, passed on his condolences to Councillor Munsif 
Dad on the recent death of his wife who was Mayoress of Hyndburn in his Mayoral 
year of 2014-15.  

 
- The Mayoral Charity Ball would take place on Saturday 23rd March and tickets were 

still available to purchase. 
 
The Leader of the Council 
 

- The Leader congratulated Councillor Judith Addison as she would be receiving an 
award from the High Sheriff of Lancashire.  

 
- The Leader would respond on behalf of the Council to a consultation about the 

future of Homewise as a result of funding changes by Lancashire County Council. 
 

- The Leader had wrote a letter to the Minister of State and would forward the letter to 
the Opposition Group, district Leaders and the County Council in relation to fair 
funding and dealing with deprivation in East Lancashire.  

 
- The Leader reported that he had competed in his first Park Run event at Wilsons 

Playing Fields at the weekend and commented on the success of the event.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4.



 
 
 

 

 
 

- The Cabinet Member for Education, Leisure and Arts reported on behalf of the 
Leader that a letter would be sent to Lancashire County Council concerning the 
consultation for traffic regulations in Great Harwood and on street car parking.  

 
 
Confirmation of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Council held on 10th January 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 
 
Core Strategy Review and Site Allocations DPD Consultation Draft (Regulation 18) 
 
The Leader of the Council presented a report to update Council on progress with 
preparation of the new Local Plan (the Core Strategy Review and Site Allocations DPD) 
and to seek approval for a consultation process under Regulation 18 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. 
 
Work was continuing on preparation of the new Local Plan for Hyndburn. The emerging 
new Local Plan comprised of four key policy documents: 
 

 The Core Strategy (first adopted in 2012, now under review); 

 The Site Allocations DPD (work underway); 

 The Development Management DPD (adopted in 2018); and 

 The Accrington Area Action Plan (adopted in 2012) 
 
Resolved - (1) That Council noted and approved the content of the 

Core Strategy Review Consultation Draft; 
 
 - (2) That Council noted and approved the content of the 

Site Allocations DPD Consultation Draft including the 
long list of sites for which initial site assessment 
information will be published; 

 
  - (3) That delegated authority be granted to  the Chief 

Planning and Transportation Officer, following 
consultation with the portfolio holder for Planning, to 
make any final minor changes as they consider 
necessary or appropriate; and 

 
  - (4) That Council approve publication of the documents 

for a 6 week public consultation period recommended to 
commence on Tuesday 26th February 2019.  

 
 
National Non Domestic Rates Retail Discount Scheme 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) presented a report on the 
proposed National Non Domestic Rates Retail Discount Scheme for 2019-20 and 2020-21. 
 
The National Non Domestic Rates Retail Discount Scheme is a temporary scheme 
announced by the Government in its Budget on 29th October 2018.  This was a 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
 

Government funded, two-year scheme available nationally and delivered in accordance with 
the Council’s Discretionary Relief powers under Section 47 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988.  The Retail Discount Scheme will be available to eligible ratepayers from 
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021. 
 
Resolved - That Council approved the National Non Domestic Rates 

Discount Scheme in order for the Council to meets its 
obligations as laid out in the Government’s Budget on 
29th October 2018. 

 
 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/2022 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources presented a report relating to the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy which set out income and spending projections for the Council for the 
next three years, 2019/20 to 2021/22. The report had been submitted to Cabinet on the 6th 
February 2019 and Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 12th February 
2019. 
 
The objectives of the Strategy were:-  
 

 To be the financial expression of the Corporate Plan, providing the resources to 
deliver the plan. 

 To ensure that commitments did not exceed forecasted anticipated resources over 
the period and for each year.  

 To ensure that expenditure was increasingly focused on those areas which the 
Council had determined as its priority areas. 

 To ensure that the level of Council Tax was planned in line with what the Council 
and the community as a whole regarded as being acceptable, albeit within the 
context of guidelines from Central Government.  

 To review the effectiveness of delivery of additional resources into priority areas, to 
ensure that the objectives set for those target areas were actually being achieved. 

 To ensure that the Council remained in a strong financial position as measured by 
the size of balances and reserves (consistent with the Chief Financial Officer’s 
recommendations).   

 To improve value for money assessments in all services by delivering increased 
efficiency savings.  

 
The key elements of the Strategy were:- 
 

 Forecasting Resources 

 Budget Monitoring and Forecasting Commitments 

 Corporate Strategic Direction and Priorities of the Council 
 
Appendix 1 contained a three year standard model medium term financial strategy 2019/20  
to 2021/22. 
 
Appendix 2 contained a three year pessimistic model medium term financial strategy  
2019/20 to 2021/22. 
 
Appendix 3 contained a three year optimistic model medium term financial strategy 2019/20  
to 2021/22. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
 

Resolved - That the report and the accompanying Medium Term 
Financial Strategy be approved. 

 
 
Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management & Investment Strategy 2019/20-
2021/22 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, explaining how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities, and seeking agreement to an investment strategy for 
2019/20.  Treasury Management was defined as:- 
 
“The management of the Council’s investment and cash flows, its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; 
 
The effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and, 
 
The pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 
 
The Council was required to operate a balanced budget which meant that cash raised 
during the year met cash expenditure.  Part of treasury management was to ensure the 
cash flow was properly planned with cash available when needed.  Surplus monies were 
invested in line with the Council’s low risk preferences. 
 
The Prudential Code was a professional code that set out the framework for self-regulation 
of capital spending and financing which allowed councils to invest in capital projects without 
any limit as long as such investment was affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code 
was produced by Cipfa and required the Council to agree and monitor a minimum number 
of prudential indicators (including limits and statements) which related to affordability, 
prudence, capital expenditure, external debt and treasury management. 
 
The aspects addressed in the report were:- 
 

 Capital Expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy   

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year-End Reporting 
 
Resolved (1) That the prudential indicators and limits detailed in the 

report be adopted; 
 
 (2) That the treasury management strategy, and associated 

indicators, as set out in section 8 of the report, be 
approved; 

 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
 

 (3) That the investment strategy, as set out in section 13 of 
the report, be approved; and, 

 
 (4) That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for year 

2019/20, set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
approved; 

 
 (5) That the Treasury Management Policy Statement 

2019/20, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report, be 
approved; and, 

 
 (6) That the Treasury Management Practices Statement 

2019/20, as set out in Appendix 3 to the report, be 
approved; and, 

 
 (7) That the Capital Strategy 2019/20, set out in Appendix 4 

to the report, be approved; 
 
 
General Revenue Budget, Council Tax Levels and Capital Programme 2019/20 
 
Before the start of the debate, the Mayor sought consent to the order and format of the 
debate, a copy of which had been circulated prior to and at the meeting.  The meeting gave 
its consent to the proposed arrangements. 
 
The Leader of the Council presented the proposed revenue and capital budget and council 
tax levels for 2019/20. Proposals for the 2019/20 general fund revenue budget and capital 
programme had been put forward at Cabinet on the 6th February 2019 and had been 
recommended to Council for approval.  
 
The Leader put forward an updated report circulated at the meeting setting out the 
Council’s budget requirement for 2019/20, its Precept on the Collection Fund and the formal 
details surrounding the Precept of other bodies on the Collection Fund and seeked 
permission to continue to allow former Area Council budgets for Capital and Revenue to be 
retained by those groups or their successors and for additional payment or payments to be 
made to Lancashire Pension Authority if surplus funds existed.    
 
The Vice-Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillor Jenny 
Molineux) submitted a report of that Committee’s consideration for the budget proposals, to 
which the Leader responded. 
 
A motion was proposed by Councillor Miles Parkinson and seconded by Councillor Paul 
Cox\:- 
 
“That the recommendations for the General Fund Revenue Budget, General Fund Capital 
Programme Budget and Council Tax Levels for 2019/20, now submitted by the Controlling 
Group of the Council, be approved.” 
 
No proposals were submitted by the opposition (Conservative group). 
 
A debate on the motion then followed, after which it was put to the vote.  In accordance with 
the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 a 
recorded vote was taken.  The votes were recorded as follows:- 
 
For the Motion: 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
Councillors Judith Addison, Josh Allen, Lisa Allen, Mohammad Ayub, Noordad Aziz,  
Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Loraine Cox, Paul Cox,  
Munsif Dad, Tony Dobson, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher, Glen Harrison, 
June Harrison, Terry Hurn, Abdul Khan, Gareth Molineux, Jenny Molineux, Tim O’Kane, 
Dave Parkins, Bernadette Parkinson, Miles Parkinson, Joyce Plummer and Kath Pratt (28). 
 
Against the Motion: 
 
None. 
 
Abstentions: 
 
None 
 
The motion was therefore carried. 
 

Resolved (1) That the Cabinet’s recommendations on the Revenue 
and Capital Budgets and Prudential Indicators and 
Treasury Management Report for 2019/20 to 2021/22 
made at the Cabinet meeting on the 6th February 2019 be 
accepted and adopted;  

 
  (2) That Council Tax for Hyndburn Borough Council be 

increased by £5.00 to £245.52 for the year for a Band D 
property.  That was equivalent to a 10 pence per week 
increase for a Band D property, but most people in 
Hyndburn would see an annual increase of £3.33 as they 
lived in Band A properties.  The weekly increase there 
would be 7 pence;   

 
  (3) That the Council commits to continuing to strengthen 

its Reserves during the year and requires the Chief 
Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive to take 
appropriate action to protect the Council’s overall 
financial position and further strengthen its Reserves 
during the forthcoming year; 

 
  (4) That the Council delegates authority to the Chief 

Executive to take such action as he considers 
necessary to implement the measures contained in the 
budget;  

 
  (5) That it be noted that on the 9th January 2019 the Council 

at its Cabinet calculated: 
 

o the Council Tax Base 2019/20 for the whole 
Council area as 20,934 (Item T in the formula in 
Section 31B(3) of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”) and, 

 
o for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a 

Parish precept relates as 316; 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
 

  (6) That Council agrees that the Council Tax requirement 
for the Council’s own purpose for 2019/20 (excluding 
Parish precepts) is £5,139,716; 

 
  (7) That Council agrees that the following amounts be 

calculated for the year 2019/20 in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 

 
a)  £53,197,453 Being being the aggregate of the 

amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all 
precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

 
b)  £48,045,012 being being the aggregate of the 

amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 

 
c)  £5,152,441 being being the amount by which the 

aggregate at 7(a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 7(b) 
above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with 
Section 31A(4) of the Act as 
its Council Tax requirement 
for the year (Item R in the 
formula in Section 31A(4) of 
the Act). 

 
d)  £246.13 being being the amount at 7(c) above 

(Item R), all divided by Item T 
(5 above), calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B(1) of the Act, as 
the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year 
(including Parish precepts). 

 
 

e)  £12,725 being being the aggregate amount of 
all special items (Parish 
precepts) referred to in 
Section 34(1) of the Act (as per 
the attached Appendix B). 

 
f)  £245.52 being being the amount at 7(d) above 

less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 7(e) 
above by Item T (5 above), 
calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
 

amount of its Council Tax for 
the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 
 

  (8) That Council note that the County Council, the 
Lancashire Police & Crime Commissioner and the 
Lancashire Combined Fire & Rescue Authority have 
issued precepts to the Council in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
for each category of dwellings in the Council’s area as 
indicated in the table below; 

 
  (9) That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets 
the aggregate amounts shown in the table below as the 
amounts of Council Tax for 2019/20 for each part of its 
area and for each of the categories of dwellings; 

 

 
 
  (10) That the Council note the basic amount of Council Tax 

for 2019/20 is not considered excessive in accordance 
with principles approved under Section 52 ZB Local 
Government Finance Act 1992; 

 
  (11) That the Deputy Chief Executive be given delegated 

authority to amend the budget (following  consultation 
with the Leader of the Council) for technical reasons or 
to comply with legal requirements, such as the 
restructuring of cost centres, the re-apportionment and 
re-allocation of overheads etc., so long as these 
changes have an overall neutral impact on the budget; 

 
  (12) That any continuing balances on Revenue or Capital 

previously earmarked for Area Councils continues to be 
set aside for use by these or their successor bodies; 

 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
 

  (13) That the Chief Executive be given delegated authority to 
use the unallocated surplus generated in 2018/19 to 
fund any future shortfall in income or additional 
expenditure, to support “Invest to Save” projects that 
will help reduce the Council’s long term costs (including 
additional payments to the Pension Fund as outlined 
below), or support specific capital projects, or finance 
other commitments that he deems to be in the best long 
term interest of the Council or to transfer funds to 
Reserves as required;   

 
  (14) That the Chief Executive be given delegated authority 

following consultation with the Leader to make a 
payment to the Lancashire Pension Authority to help 
reduce the extent of the Council’s pension liabilities that 
have amassed from previous years (£38.8m as at the 
31st March 2018); and 

 
 
Non Attendance by Councillor for 6 Months 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to consider approving that Councillor 
Stephanie Haworth continue to be a member of the Council if she remains unable to attend 
any relevant meeting of the Council on or before 20th March 2019. 
 
Resolved (1) That Council approved that Councillor Stephanie 

Haworth would continue to be a member of the Council 
if, due to illness, she is unable to attend any relevant 
meeting of the Council on or before 20th March 2019, 
with such approval to extend until 20th September 2019; 
and 

 
 (2) That Council review this approval on or before 20th 

September 2019 if Councillor Stephanie Haworth 
remains unable to attend any relevant meeting of the 
Council due to ill health. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 21 March 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Kirsten Burnett, Head of Human Resources 

TITLE OF REPORT: Draft Pay Policy 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To present a draft Pay Policy for 2018/19. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Council approves the proposed policy. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Localism Act 2011 (Chapter 8 - Pay Accountability) requires all local authorities to 

set out its position on a range of issues relating to the remuneration of its employees.  
The Policy must be approved by the Council in open forum, by the end of March each 
year and then be published on its website. 

 
3.2 The Pay Policy sets out the existing approach to the remuneration of all posts within 

the Council.  In particular it specifies certain mandatory requirements that must be 
detailed within the Policy, as follows: 

 

 The pay structure of the Council and how it is set. 
 

 Senior Management Remuneration, providing details of the pay grade for posts defined 
as Chief Officer and the accompanying allowances. 

 

 The recruitment arrangements for a Chief Officer. 
 

 The relationship between the salaries of Chief Officers and other employees. 
 

 Details of the lowest paid posts within the Council. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6.



 

 Employer’s Pension Contribution details. 
 

 Termination of employment payments. 
 
3.3 The Council already publishes pay and remuneration details of its senior managers on 

its Website. 
 

3.4 The purpose of the Pay Policy is to ensure there is transparency as to how pay and 
remuneration is set by the Council, for all of its employees and particularly for its most 
senior level posts. 

 
3.5 The draft policy has no significant changes compared to the current policy, just up to 

date figures. 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 N/a 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 N/a 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

The pay and remuneration detailed within the 
Pay Policy are all within the approved budget 
of the Council 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

The Pay Policy has been prepared to ensure 
the Council complies with the requirements of 
the Localism Act 2011. 

Assessment of risk 
 

 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

A CFA was completed before the policy was 
written in 2012.  There have been no 
significant changes which require this to be 
repeated. 

 
 
  

Page 16

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 
List of Background Papers  

 
7.1 Localism Act 2011 – Chapter 8: 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/8/enacted 
 

Supplementary Guidance: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-
accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance 

 

Page 17

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/8/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/openness-and-accountability-in-local-pay-supplementary-guidance


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Hyndburn Borough Council 
 

Draft Pay Policy - 2019/20 
 
1. Purpose of the Policy 
 

 To maintain a transparent approach to the setting of the pay of the Council’s employees. 
 

 To comply with the requirements of the Localism Act, Section 38 – Pay Accountability. 
 
1.1 The Policy details: 
 

 The methods by which salaries of all employees are determined; 
 

 The details of the remuneration of the Council’s most senior employees, i.e. Chief Officers; and 
 

 The relationship between the salary of the Council’s Chief Officers and other employees. 
 
2. Background 
  
2.1 The Localism Act 2011 (Chapter 8 - Pay Accountability) requires every local authority to set out 

its position on a range of issues relating to the remuneration of its employees. 
 
2.2 The policy will reflect, where appropriate, relevant aspects of existing Human Resources 

policies, such as the Council’s agreements on job evaluation and the redundancy policy. 
 
2.3 The policy must be approved by a meeting of full Council in open forum, by the end of March 

each year, and then be published on its website. 
 
3. Legislation relevant to Pay and Remuneration 
 
3.1 In determining the pay and remuneration of its employees, the Council will comply with all 

relevant employment legislation.  This includes the Equality Act 2010 and the Part Time 
Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000.  The Council will 
take reasonable steps to ensure that there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and 
that pay differentials can be quantified through the application of its Job Evaluation Scheme. 

 
3.2 The Council operates the GLPC (Greater London Provincial Council) Scheme, including Chief 

Officers, for whom there is a specific version of this scheme.  The posts of Chief Executive, 
Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director have been evaluated in consultation with North 
West Employers Organisation. 

 
4. Pay Structure 
 
4.1 The Council complies with the nationally negotiated spinal column points for all posts, with the 

exception being those senior level posts referred to within the policy.  The salary grades that 
the Council applies for all other posts are at Appendix 1. 

 
4.2 Salary increases are set nationally, through collective bargaining between the national 

employers and trade unions. 
 

Page 19



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

4.3 The pay and grading structure for the majority of posts was established at the time of the job 
evaluation exercise completed in 2007.  Since 2007, all newly created posts and posts that 
have varied are subject to evaluation against the job evaluation scheme. 

 
5. Definitions  
 
5.1 The Localism Act refers to the position of Chief Officer and states that this refers to: the Head 

of Paid Service; Statutory Chief Officers; non-statutory Chief Officer posts and their direct 
reports (Deputy Chief Officers).  It should be noted that this definition is very broad, and takes 
account of Metropolitan and County Councils as well as District Councils. 

 
5.2 It is considered that the posts that the term Chief Officer applies to, at Hyndburn Borough 

Council, in relation to the Localism Act are the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive, 
who is also the Chief Finance and Section 151 Officer, and the Executive Director (Legal and 
Democratic Services), who is the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
5.3 Our annual Statement of Accounts also includes senior officers with a salary over £50,000, 

within the threshold for disclosure under the Accounts and Audit requirements. 
 
5.4 Remuneration is defined as the pay and rewards an individual receives.  Details are produced 

in the audited Statement of Accounts on an annual basis.  The last Statement of Accounts 
shows the position at 31 March 2018 and is published on the Council’s website1. 

 
6. Chief Executive / Corporate Director Remuneration 
 
6.1 There are three director level posts reporting to the Chief Executive, one of whom is the 

Deputy Chief Executive.  The responsibilities of these senior officers are shown on the 
Council’s organisational structure charts, which are updated and published annually2. 

 
6.3 Details of remuneration are contained in the annual Statement of Accounts. 
 
6.4 Salary packages and severance payments over £100,000 will be brought to a meeting of full 

Council to be voted on.  Components of severance packages, where applicable, may include 
salary paid in lieu, redundancy compensation, pension entitlements, holiday pay and any 
bonuses, fees or allowances paid.  

 
6.5 The other terms and conditions of service relating to the post of Chief Executive are in 

accordance with the Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives of Local Authorities. 
 
7. Recruitment of Chief Executive and Chief Officers 
 
7.1 Under Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint 

officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit”. 
 
7.2 Where there is a requirement to recruit to the post of Chief Executive or Chief Officer, Section 

H of the Council’s Constitution will apply. 
 
  

                                                      
1
 https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/statement-of-accounts/ 

2
 https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/organisational-structure-chart/ 

Page 20

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/organisational-structure-chart/


 

Page 3 of 7 
 

8. Salary upon Appointment  
 
8.1 All new appointments to a post of Chief Executive or Chief Officer will be made within the 

minimum and maximum spinal column points of the grade. 
 
9. Performance-related Pay 
 
9.1 The Localism Act requires Councils to provide details of any performance-related pay for its 

Chief Officers.  Hyndburn Borough Council does not have any such arrangements. 
 
10. Relationship between Chief Executive Pay and other Employees 
 
10.1 The relationship between the salaries of the Chief Executive and the median salary and the 

lowest paid salary are: 
 

Post Benchmark Salary Ratio 

Chief Executive salary median salary 1:5 

Chief Executive salary lowest salary 1:7 

 
Median salary = £23,111 
Lowest salary = £17,364 
 

11. Lowest Paid Employees 
 
11.1 The Council complies with the National Joint Council – Pay and Conditions of Service.  The 

minimum salary the Council pays is in accordance with the Living Wage, which at present 
equates to £17,364 per annum (see Appendix 1).  The positions that this salary applies to are 
Cleaners and 1 of our Gallery Assistants. 

 
11.2 Progression through grades occurs through the payment of an additional annual increment on 

1 April each year. 
 
11.3 Part-time posts are paid the same salary, but on a pro-rata basis. 
 
12. Gender Pay Gap  
 
12.1 Employers in Great Britain with more than 250 staff are required by the Equality Act 2010 

(Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017 to publish the following four types of figures 
annually on their own website and on a government website.  The deadline for public sector 
employers is 30 March 2019 and the Council has already reported the following figures, from 
31 March 2018: 

 
 Gender pay gap (mean and median averages); 
 Gender bonus gap (mean and median averages); 
 Proportion of men and women receiving bonuses; and 
 Proportion of men and women in each quartile of the organisation’s pay structure. 
 
12.2 The median gender pay gap is 0.4% for all employees.  The median figure is the ONS’s 

preferred measure of average earnings. 
 
12.3 This gap is much lower than the national whole workforce gender pay gap which is reported by 

the ONS as 17.9%. 
  

Page 21



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

Gender Pay gap Median Mean 

Hourly rate 0.4% 7.0% 

Bonus 2.0%                      -4.8% 

 
*Bonus gap figures relate to 3 females on maternity leave and 1 male on sick leave. 
 
12.3 Proportion of Males and Females in each quartile pay band 
 

Quartile  Male Female Mean Pay Gap 

1 Lower quartile 37.3% 62.7% 2.5% 

2 Lower middle quartile 71.6% 28.4% 1.6% 

3 Upper middle quartile 53.7% 46.3% -2.5% 

4 Upper quartile 57.6% 42.4% 10.5% 

 
12.4 We are committed to the principle of equal pay for all our employees, and our job evaluation 

system means we can be confident as reasonably possible that men and women are paid 
equally for doing equivalent jobs. 

 
13. Termination Payments 
 
13.1 The Council’s Redundancy Policy applies equally to all permanent employees regardless of 

their grade.  A redundancy payment will be paid to an employee when their post is made 
redundant and there are no suitable redeployment opportunities. 

 
12.2 For all permanent employees where there is the option for early retirement, the Council’s Policy 

on Discretionary Compensation will apply where appropriate. 
 
13. Employer Pension Contribution 
  
13.1 The Council contributes to the Local Government Pension Scheme for all its employees 

equally 28% of an employee’s salary.  This rate of contribution is set by Actuaries advising the 
Lancashire Pension Fund and is reviewed on a triennial basis. 

 
14. Employee Pension Contribution 
 
14.1 Employees in the Local Government Pension Scheme pay at present the annual contributions 

shown in the table below, based upon their salary.  
 

Band Actual pensionable pay 
Employee contribution rate 

(%) 
1 Up to £14,100 5.5 
2 £14101- £22,000 5.8 
3 £22,001- £35,700 6.5 
4 £35,701- £45,200 6.8 
5 £45,201- £63,100 8.5 
6 £63,101- £89,400 9.9 
7 £89,401- £105,200 10.5 

8 £105,201-£157,800 11.4 

9 More than £157,801 12.5 

  

Page 22



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

15. Publication of the Policy 
 
15.1 The Policy will be published on the Council’s Website, by April 2019, following its approval by 

the Council. 
 
16. Review of Pay Policy 
 
16.1 The Policy will be subject to annual review and must be approved by the Council prior to 31 

March each year.  If there is a need to amend the Policy between reviews, then any such 
amendments will be considered by the Cabinet, prior to approval by the Council. 

Page 23



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Appendix 1: Pay Scales 
 
NJC Pay Scales: 1st April 2019 – final implementation details still to be agreed 
 

01/04/2018       01/04/2019     

Salary Range SCP Salary 
Hourly 
Rate 

New SCP Salary 
Hourly 
Rate 

  6 16394 8.50 

1 17364 9.00 Scale 1b 7 16495 8.55 

(7 - 11) 8 16626 8.62 

2 17711 9.18   9 16755 8.68 

  10 16863 8.74 

3 18065 9.36 Scale 2 11 17007 8.82 

(11 -13) 12 17173 8.90 

4 18426 9.55   13 17391 9.01 

Scale 3a 14 17681 9.16 

5 18795 9.74 (14-15) 15 17972 9.32 

Scale 3b 16 18319 9.50 

6 19171 9.94 (16 - 17) 17 18672 9.68 

Scale 4 18 18870 9.78 7 19554 10.14 

  19 19446 10.08 8 19945 10.34 

  20 19819 10.27 9 20344 10.54 

        10 20751 10.76 

  21 20541 10.65 11 21166 10.97 

Scale 5 22 21074 10.92 12 21589 11.19 

        13 22021 11.41 

  23 21693 11.24 14 22462 11.64 

  24 22401 11.61 15 22911 11.88 

        16 23369 12.11 

  25 23111 11.98 17 23836 12.35 

        18 24313 12.60 

Scale 6 26 23866 12.37 19 24799 12.85 

  27 24657 12.78 20 25295 13.11 

        21 25801 13.37 

  28 25463 13.20 22 26317 13.64 

Scale 7 29 26470 13.72 23 26999 13.99 

  30 27358 14.18 24 27905 14.46 

  31 28221 14.63 25 28785 14.92 

Scale 8 32 29055 15.06 26 29636 15.36 

(32 - 34) 33 29909 15.50 27 30507 15.81 

Scale 9 34 30756 15.94 28 31371 16.26 

(33 - 36) 35 31401 16.28 29 32029 16.60 

  36 32233 16.71 30 32878 17.04 

Page 24



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

Scale 10 37 33136 17.18 31 33799 17.52 

36 - 39 38 34106 17.68 32 34788 18.03 

  39 35229 18.26 33 35934 18.63 

Scale 11 40 36153 18.74 34 36876 19.11 

(38 - 41) 41 37107 19.23 35 37849 19.62 

Scale 12 42 38052 19.72 36 38813 20.12 

  43 39002 20.22 37 39782 20.62 

  44 39961 20.71 38 40760 21.13 

  45 40858 21.18 39 41675 21.60 

Not used 46 41846 21.69 40 42683 22.12 

Service  47 42806 22.19 41 43662 22.63 

Managers 1 48 43757 22.68 42 44632 23.13 

  49 44697 23.17 43 45591 23.63 

  50 45641 23.66 44 46554 24.13 

 
 
 
JNC PAY SCALES 1 April 2018 
 

Salary Range  SCP 
Salary 

(£) 
Monthly Salary 

(£) 
Hourly 
Rate (£) 

Chief Officers (1) 
  
  
  
  

JNC16 53,646 4,470.50 27.81 

JNC17 54,986 4,582.17 28.50 

JNC18 56,338 4,694.83 29.20 

JNC19 57,664 4,805.33 29.89 

JNC20 59,008 4,917.33 30.59 

Chief Officers (2) 
  
  
  
  

JNC21 49,244 4,103.67 25.52 

JNC22 50,351 4,195.92 26.10 

JNC23 51,586 4,298.83 26.74 

JNC24 52,802 4,400.17 27.37 

JNC25 54,037 4,503.08 28.01 

 

 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 21 March 2019 

REPORT OF: Cllr Glen Harrison, Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Appointment of Co-optees 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To submit recommendations for Co-opted Members on to the Communities and 

Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Council approves the following new appointment of Co-optee to the Communities 

and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committees: 
 

- Honorary Alderman Doug Hayes 
 
2.2 Due to timing of the nomination, this Co-optee position to last until the end of the 

2019/20 Municipal Year before any re-nomination is required. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Councils Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule C2 states: 
 

Each overview and scrutiny committee may appoint up to three members of the public, 
who the committee deems to have relevant experience of topics related to that scrutiny 
committee, as non-voting co-optees.  
 
(i) Applications may be invited to fill a vacancy for a co-opted member at the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee; applications may also be received directly from members of 
the public.  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7.



 

(ii) The application will be considered first at the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. The Committee will consider the knowledge and experience of the 
applicant relevant to the terms of reference or work programme of the Committee.  

 
(iii) The intention is that such co-optees will be non-political.  

 
(iv) If the majority of the Overview and Scrutiny members support the appointment of 
the applicant, the proposed appointment will be presented to Council for approval.  

 
3.2 Council approved the appointment of three Co-optees (Honorary Aldermen Ian 

Ormerod, Paul Barton and Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson) to the Resources and 
one Co-optee (Honorary Freeman Bernard Dawson) to the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committees at its meeting on 20th September 2018. 
This left two vacant co-optee positions on the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.3 An expression of interest was submitted in October this year by Honorary Alderman 

Doug Hayes. Doug served as a Councillor for Oswaldtwistle for 24 years, was Mayor in 
2000/01 and the Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee for several 
years. His experience could add value to the Committee. 

 
3.4 At its meeting on 31st October 2018, the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee considered the nomination and unanimously supported it. 
 
3.5 Should the nomination be accepted by Council, there will remain once vacant Co-optee 

position on the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Any 
nominations received for this vacant position will be considered at the next available 
meeting of the Committee. 

 
3.6 It should be noted that Co-optees are generally appointed or re-appointed to the 

position each municipal year, however, as there is only one further meeting of the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee this year, it is 
recommended that this Co-optee appointment remain valid until the end of the 2019/20 
municipal year. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Council could choose to reject the recommendation from the Committee as it is a 

Council decision to make an appointment. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 None 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including None 

Page 28



 

any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

Not Applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

12th July 2018 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2360&Ver
=4 

  
 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 11th July  
 
 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=129&Year=0 
 

Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee on 31st October 2018 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2378&Ver
=4 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2360&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2360&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=129&Year=0
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2378&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2378&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT TO: Council 

DATE: 21 March 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Jane Ellis 

Executive Director (Legal & Democratic Services) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Sale of Clayton Triangle site – update from Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee Call-in 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To report the findings of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee “Call-in” in 

respect of the sale of the Clayton Triangle site. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Council note that the Cabinet decision of 6th February 2019 in respect of the 

disposal of the Clayton Triangle site was released in full for implementation. 

2.2    That Council note the comments of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
respect of future disposals of land and property as set out in paragraph 3 of this report. 

 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 At its meeting on 6th February 2019 Cabinet approved the disposal of the land known 

as Clayton Triangle. That decision was subsequently “called in” by the Resources 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee, which met to consider the matter on 4th March 2019. 

3.2        After careful consideration the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee released 

the Cabinet decision for full implementation. 

3.3        In addition, Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee asked that Cabinet noted the 

following: 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8.



 

 

             i) that the Committee wishes to ensure that ward councillors are consulted in respect 

proposals for the sale of land and property in their area and that there is wider 

member participation in the disposal of Council owned sites; and 

             ii) that the Committee is keen to ensure that the Council markets its sites for sale as 

widely and proactively as possible to ensure that development opportunities are 

brought to the attention of a wide range of potential purchasers. This will include 

ensuring the Council has an up to date mailing list of all developers, including co-

operatives and registered social landlords. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

none 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

none 

Assessment of risk 
 

none identified 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

none identified 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1     None 
 
 
  

Page 32

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 9th January, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox, 

Munsif Dad and Joyce Plummer 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Lisa Allen, Tony Dobson, June Harrison and Eamonn Higgins 

  

Apologies: Clare Cleary and Gareth Molineux 
 

 
259 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Clare Cleary and Gareth Molineux. 
 

260 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

261 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 5th December 2018 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Conservative Group asked what progress had been made in 
relation to minute 236 about the Town Centre Business and Marketing Co-ordinator. It was 
stated that a meeting had been arranged with the Town Centre Officer and Executive 
Director (Environment). 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

262 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
No minutes were received from any boards, panels and working groups. 
 

263 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports provided by Cabinet Members present at the meeting. 
 

264 Council Tax Base 2019-2020 
 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to inform Members of the Council Tax Base 
for the financial year 2019-2020.  
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
In accordance with Section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, the Council  
was required to formally determine the Council Tax Base for 2019-2020 prior to 31st  

Page 35

Agenda Item 9.



 
 
 

 

 
 

January 2019. This allowed the Council to notify the major preceptors (Lancashire  
County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire and Lancashire  
Combined Fire Authority) by the 31st January of the Council Tax Base. 
 
The requisite calculation (Appendices A and B) had to be carried out in accordance  
with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012. Once  
determined the Council Tax Base cannot be changed and has to be used when the  
Council set their Council Tax for the financial year 2019-2020.  
 
The calculation of the Tax Base for Hyndburn and Altham for 2019-2020 was attached  
to the agenda report.  It proposed that the Tax Base for Hyndburn 2019-2020 shall be  
20,934 This is an increase from last year’s Tax Base of 428 (20,506).  The 2019-2020  
Tax Base for Altham is 316, an increase from last year’s Tax Base of 2 (314). 
 
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 specify formulae 
for calculating the Council Tax Base which must be set between the 1st December 2018 
and the 31st January 2019. 

 
The Council Tax Base is the measure of the number of chargeable dwellings held on the 
valuation list as at the 10 September 2018 and then adjusted to take account of discounts, 
exemptions, re-bandings and Council Tax Support to arrive at the Authority’s Council Tax 
Band D. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
This is a statutory requirement, therefore no other options can be considered. 
 
A Customer First Analysis was attached at Appendix C to the report.   

Resolved (1) That the report be approved;  

 (2) That in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount 
calculated by the Council as its Council Tax Base for 
the financial year 2019/2020 be 20,934;  and,  

 (3) That in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 2012, the amount 
calculated by the Council for its Council Tax Base for 
the Parish of Altham for the financial year 2019/2020 be 
316. 

 
265 Housing and Economic Needs Assessment 

 
The Leader of the Council submitted a report to notify Cabinet of the completion of a  
key part of the evidence base for the new Local Plan, the Housing and Economic  
Needs Assessment (HENA), and to inform Cabinet of the key findings of the study. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 

  
The new Local Plan for Hyndburn was in preparation, and the Council was scheduled to 
commence a public consultation on it in February 2019. Separate papers would be brought 
to the February Cabinet meeting providing details of the proposed consultation material, 
and seeking approval to commence consultation.  

Page 36



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
The public consultation would include draft proposed planning policies recommending 
appropriate levels of housing growth and employment growth to plan for in the Borough to 
2036. It will also consider the broad distribution of growth across settlements in the 
Borough. These policies will be detailed within the Core Strategy Review DPD. It will also 
present some initial site assessment information on a large pool of potential development 
sites referred to as the ‘long list of sites’. It is from these that the most suitable parcels of 
land will be taken forward in the Site Allocations DPD (part of the Local Plan) for formal 
allocation. Sufficient sites will need to be allocated to meet the growth for housing and 
employment set out in the Core Strategy Review DPD policies. 

 
In support of development of the draft policies for the Core Strategy Review, in July 2018 
the Council commissioned consultants GL Hearn to update the evidence base on housing 
and economic needs in the Borough over the plan period (2016-2036). This work has now 
been completed and is referred to as a Housing and Economic Needs Assessment (HENA). 
The study had been undertaken for the joint housing market area covering both Blackburn 
with Darwen and Hyndburn local authority areas, and builds on previous joint working 
undertaken through the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (in 2014). 

 
The HENA study looked at housing need through analysis of demographics, market signals 
and economic forecasting. It looks at the need for general market housing, as well as 
affordable housing, older persons’ needs, and the appropriate housing mix to plan for by 
tenure. These are requirements set out by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and matters that the Government expects to see addressed through local planning policies 
in development plans. 

 
The HENA study also considered employment forecasts for the Borough. It begins by 
considering likely job growth under an economic baseline scenario derived from national 
economic forecasts. It goes on to set out what it considers and justifies as a local ‘economic 
growth scenario’ and provides forecast growth figures for that. The study concludes by 
considering the link between planning for future employment and housing growth, making 
recommendations for both in terms of the quantum of land required for allocation in the 
Local Plan. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
The HENA was part of the evidence base that the Council had prepared in support of its 
new Local Plan. The findings of the HENA, alongside other relevant considerations, will 
now be used to help draft Core Strategy policies for public consultation. The commission of 
the HENA was made to ensure that the emerging Hyndburn Local Plan was produced in 
accordance with Government Planning Practice Guidance, which requires plans to be 
based on up-to-date, robust evidence. The Local Plan would not be capable of passing the 
scrutiny of local communities and key stakeholders, nor successful Examination in Public, 
without robust and up-to-date evidence on the key matters of housing and economic 
growth. 

Resolved  That Cabinet noted the findings of the HENA study and 
implications for planning policy in the emerging Local 
Plan. 

 
266 Financial Position November 2018- Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the report. 

Page 37



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report to inform Cabinet on the financial 
spending of the Council up to the end of November 2018 and the financial forecast outturn 
position for the Accounting Year 2018/19. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The financial details of the report was shown as a table at the end of the report. 

 
The spend for the first eight months of the financial year to the end of November 2018 was 
£7,030,241 compared to a Budget of £7,041,271 giving a small positive variance of £11,000 
over the first eight months of the year. 

 
The current forecast spend to the end of the financial year in March 2019 was £11,098,000 
compared to a Budget of £11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of 
£76,000.  Culture & Leisure Services, Parks & Cemeteries and Planning & Transportation 
were all predicting small adverse variance.  There were more significant adverse variances 
on Town Centre & Markets and Policy & Corporate Governance. All other Budget Areas are 
predicting a surplus position compared to their Budget by the year end. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection   
 
Not applicable.   
 
Resolved - That Cabinet noted the report and asked that the 

Corporate Management Team continue to reduce costs 
and increase income over the remainder of the year to 
help improve the overall financial position of the 
Council.  

 
267 Hyndburn Leisure Financial Support 

 
Exclusion of the Public 

Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the report. 
 
Exempt Information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted an exempt report to inform Cabinet of 
a request for financial assistance from Hyndburn Leisure. 
 

Page 38



 
 
 

 

 
 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 

Resolved  - That the recommendations as set out in the report be 
approved. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
CABINET 

 

 
Wednesday, 6th February, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Miles Parkinson (in the Chair), Councillors Paul Cox and 

Gareth Molineux 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Dobson, Lisa Allen, Noordad Aziz, June Harrison 

  

Apologies: Councillors Clare Cleary, Munsif Dad and Joyce Plummer 
 

 
287 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Cleary, Plummer and Dad. 
 

288 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

289 Minutes of Cabinet 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 9th January 2019 were submitted for 
approval as a correct record.  
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

290 Minutes of Boards, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The Minutes of the following meetings were submitted:- 
 
a) Cabinet Street Naming Committee – 7th November 2018 
b) Regeneration and Housing Panel  -  19th November 2018 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and noted. 
 
 

291 Reports of Cabinet Members 
 
There were no reports. 
 

292 Rhyddings Park Coach House Lease Update 
 

The Deputy Leader of the Council (Councillor Paul Cox) submitted a report that sought 

approval for the Friends of Rhyddings Park to operate the café in the Coach House building 

in Rhyddings Park 

 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 

   

Reasons for Decision 

Page 41



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 
One of the Rhyddings Park project outcomes agreed with the Heritage Lottery Fund is to 
use the Coach House building as meeting rooms, a cafe and a training kitchen.  Cabinet 
agreed to lease the Coach House building to the Friends of Rhyddings Park on 18 July 
2018.  Members were previously advised that Bootstrap Enterprises would run the café at 
the Coach House in Rhyddings Park with the intention that the Friends of Rhyddings Park 
would sublet that part of the Coach House to this local charity. Unfortunately the grant 
funding opportunities for Bootstrap Enterprises have changed and they are currently not in 
a position to run the café in the Coach House building. 
 
The Friends Of Rhyddings Park have been operating the café for events and on Saturday 
and Sunday mornings on license. This has proved a real success and the Friends Of 
Rhyddings Park have proposed they run the café on allocated days during the week instead 
of Bootstrap Enterprises.  The Friends Of Rhyddings Park is a registered charitable 
incorporated organisation but it is possible that they may create a new social enterprise 
company for the purpose of running the café.   
 
Members of Friends Of Rhyddings Park have undertaken food hygiene training, have 
appropriate food safety management systems in place and been awarded a 5 star rating by 
the Councils Food & Safety team, so are seen as a suitable organisation to run the café 
going forward.  The intention is that all profit derived from the café operation will be used by 
the Friends Of Rhyddings Park for the betterment of the use of the Coach House building 
and/or Park. This profit may be used to help fund events in Rhyddings Park, Friends Of 
Rhyddings Park activities, and not necessarily maintenance or running costs of the building 
and/or park.  

 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 
Do not permit the Friends Of Rhyddings Park to run the café in the Coach House building. 
This is not recommended as it is a key requirement of the HLF project for Rhyddings Park 
and the Friends Of Rhyddings Park already operate the café at weekends and for events. 

Resolved (1) That the original lease condition be varied to permit the 
Friends of Rhyddings Park the legal capacity, as 
considered appropriate, to operate the cafe in the Coach 
House building in Rhyddings Park;  

 (2) That authority be delegated to the Head of Housing & 
Regeneration in consultation with the Portfolio Holder 
for Environmental Services and the Executive Director 
(Legal & Democratic Services) to agree the terms of the 
lease and complete with the Friends of Rhyddings Park. 

 
293 Council Tax Empty Property Liability Report 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report to seek 
further the Council’s strategy to improve its housing stock and the regeneration of Hyndburn 
by adopting new Government provisions on premium rates of Council Tax for properties 
that are left vacant for over two years. 
 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 

Page 42



 
 
 

 

 
3 

The national problem of a housing shortage and many existing properties that are empty is 
well documented.  Hyndburn has historically suffered from a higher than normal percentage 
of empty properties, many are left vacant for long periods and blight their neighbourhoods.  
The Council has attempted to address the number of empty properties for a considerable 
time as part of its efforts to regenerate Hyndburn and provide better places to live.  The 
Council welcomed and acted upon the Government’s initial introduction of a premium on 
Council Tax in 2013 for long term empty properties as a means of encouraging their 
occupation.  While the initial Government legislation that took effect in 2013 has helped 
reduce the number of empty properties, there are still over 1000 empty properties that 
remain in Hyndburn that cause damage to our housing market and neighbourhoods.  The 
Council is therefore proposing to introduce the new Government rules fully, to further help 
reduce the overall number of empty properties.   
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 

 
Do nothing – the new legislation provided local authorities with the discretionary power to 
apply premiums to empty properties and there remains the option to retain the premium 
levels we currently apply or delay the implementation of further premiums.   
 
Alternative premium levels – the new legislation allows local authorities to apply premiums 
up to the maximum levels outlined in the report and lower premiums within these limits 
could be applied. 
 
Having considered the positive contribution that the existing premium has made towards 
bringing empty properties back into use, this report recommends that the new premium 
structure is applied in full up to the maximum levels.  Provisions remain within existing 
policy and legislation to lower the premiums if properties are being actively marketed for 
sale or rent as well as discretionary powers to remit Council Tax liabilities in extenuating 
circumstances. 

Resolved (1) That the Council Tax Empty Property Liability Policy be 
approved; and  

 (2) That the empty property premiums be introduced 
incrementally from April 2019 to April 2021, as set out in 
the report and in accordance with provisions in The 
Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and Council 
Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date information was included in the report. 
 

294 Vehicular Management Within Accrington Town Centre 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council (Councillor Paul Cox) submitted a report to inform 
Cabinet of the arrangements for vehicular management to the Accrington Market Hall 
Service Yard, Broadway and the new Town Square and seek approval to utilise Automatic 
Number Plate Recognition, (ANPR) cameras. 
 
Members were requested to consider the Privacy Impact Assessment appended to the 
report prior to taking a decision in respect of the recommendations attached to the report. 
 
Councillor Dobson referred to 3.9 of the report and expressed concern that the proposed 
adoption of Council regulations could inhibit deliveries for some shops. 

Page 43



 
 
 

 

 
4 

 

Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
The area between the Market Hall and Town Hall is the vehicle access for servicing the 
Open Market, the Market Hall, the shops on Broadway that back on to the yard and the 
shops that form part of the Accrington Market Square.   
 
As part of the Broadway development in 2004/05, the Council and the then owners of the 
Town Hall extension building entered into a Deed of Grant for the area, known as the South 
Service Yard.  This provided for the Service Yard to be just that and for the area not to be 
used as a car park.  The Deed of Grant was dated 26th May 2005. As part of this 
agreement, there is a loading/unloading policy in line with the terms of the leases issued to 
both Broadway and Market tenants. 

 
The new paving from the Town Square and the provision of four loading/unloading spaces 
allocated to Lancashire Police has greatly reduced the number of spaces available for 
Broadway and Market tenants to use. This is causing difficulties for the tenants in servicing 
their businesses as there is insufficient availability. 

 
ES Parking Solutions already operate a number of ANPR cameras for other organisations, 
the nearest being the Arndale Car Park. The company is registered as an International 
Parking Community (IPC) Accredited Contractor, and member of the Safe Contractors 
Scheme. 
 
The current method of enforcement involves officers patrolling the different locations. 
However, this does not deal with the number of vehicles that access the Service Yard, 
Broadway and the area in front of the Market Hall on the new Town Square out of hours i.e. 
late night when officers do not patrol. The installation of ANPR cameras linked to a parking 
charge notice enforcement system would make the process more effective, and greatly 
improve vehicle management of the areas. 
 
ES Parking Solutions have offered to provide ANPR camera/s and ongoing costs at zero 
cost to the Council. They are also providing all permits, clear wallets and signage free of 
charge.  
 
Business owners and marker traders with access the service yard and Broadway will be 
informed prior to ANPR cameras going live in February 2019 and all old permits and 
agreements will be withdrawn. New loading/unloading permits will be issued, together with 
the installation of new signage to inform drivers. 
 

Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
Terminating and/or not amending the existing agreement with ES Parking Solutions could 
result in abuse of, Broadway, the Council’s land directly in front of the Market Hall and the 
Market Hall Service Yard. It is highly likely it would also lead to congestion, indiscriminate 
parking, danger to staff/members of the public and breach of covenant included in the Deed 
of Grant relating to other users of the Service Yard. 
 
The parking enforcement contractor cannot provide foot patrols to every area 24/7 and 
there are genuine Health and Safety concerns in deploying lone workers late at night to 
issue tickets. 

Page 44



 
 
 

 

 
5 

Resolved (1) That authority be delegated to the Executive Director 
(Environmental Services) in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for the Environment to agree 
appropriate terms (including data sharing and data 
protection arrangements) and amend the current 
agreement with ES Parking Solutions for the Market Hall 
Service Yard, to include Broadway and the Council’s 
land directly in front of the Market Hall on the new town 
square as shown edged in blue on the attached 
Vehicular Management Plan;  

 (2) That existing officer patrols be supplemented with the 
addition of ANPR cameras where possible on the Market 
Service Yard, Broadway and in front of the Market Hall 
to reduce vehicle access/authorised parking; and  

 (3) That loading/unloading regulations for the Market Hall 
Service Yard be adopted, as set out in the report and 
authority be delegated to the Executive Director 
(Environmental Services) in consultation with the 
relevant Portfolio Holder to make any future 
amendments to the same. 

 
The following items were submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date financial information was included in the reports. 
 

295 Financial Position December 2018-19 - Report for the Year Ending 31st March 2019 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report relating 
to the financial spending of the Council at the end of December 2018 and the financial 
forecast outturn position for the Accounting Year 2018/19.  The financial detail of the report 
was appended to the report.  The spend against Budget in the nine months of the year was 
£8,022,653 against a Budget of £8,138,859 leaving a positive variance of £116,000.  The 
forecast spend for the year to 31st March 2019 was £10,998,000 against a Budget of 
£11,174,000.  This forecast produces a positive variance of £176,000.  The main area of 
financial pressure is from Town Centre & Markets.  All other Budget Areas are predicting a 
surplus position compared to their Budget by the year-end.   
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision.   
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To inform Cabinet of the financial spending of the Council at the end of December 2018 and 
the prediction of the outturn position to the end of the financial year in March 2019.  
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted and Corporate Management 

Team be asked to reduce costs and increase income 
over the remainder of the year to improve the Council’s 
overall financial position.     

 
296 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/2022 

 

Page 45



 
 
 

 

 
6 

The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report relating 
to the three year projections of income and spending for the Council ahead of formulating 
its 2019/20 Revenue and Capital Budget.  The Medium Term Financial Strategy was 
attached to the report and set out for the next three years:- 
 
(a) The way in which the Council went about its financial planning processes, especially 
in relation to the corporate budget planning cycle, which was subject to the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
 
(b) An updated action plan for the process and arrangements for reporting on progress 
to date in formulating and updating future years’ budgets.  Specifically the report updated 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy presented to Cabinet in October 2018. 
 
Appendix 1 of the background to the current budget predictions in figures to give an idea of 
commitments, funding and potential Council Tax levels.  Two further scenarios were 
provided in Appendices 2 and 3 to outline the potential range of values over the coming 
period.  Appendix 2 indicated the outer level of what the Council could face in a pessimistic 
future, whilst Appendix 3 showed an optimistic forecast based on many things going in the 
Council’s favour over the next three years.  The figures in Appendix 1 however remained 
the current best estimate of the likely financial position over the next three years. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the Strategy:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2018/19 to 2020/21 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Council Tax 

 Expected Loss of Income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Pension Costs 

 Supplies and Service Costs 

 Capital Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Cabinet required an update on its medium term financial outlook ahead of setting the 
Budget for 2019/20 and determining the level of Council Tax.  The report also ensured 
those decisions were taken with a view to the overall position of the Council going forward 
and were not limited to a narrow one year perspective. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

 

 
7 

Resolved - That the report and accompanying Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) be approved.  

 
 

297 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 2019/20 to 
2021/2022 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report setting 
out the Council’s policy and objectives with respect to treasury management, explaining 
how it would achieve its objectives and manage its activities; and to agree an investment 
strategy for 2019/20.   
 
The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2019/20 and the Treasury Management 
Policy Statement 2019/20 were attached to the report as Appendices 1 and 2 respectively.  
The Treasury Management Practices 2019/20 were set out in Paragraph 14 of the report 
and Appendix 3.  The Capital Strategy 2019/20 was set out in Appendix 4 of the report. 
 
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was a professional code which 
set out the framework for self-regulation of capital spending and financing.  It allowed 
councils to invest in capital projects without any limit as long as such investment was 
affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code was produced by Cipfa and required the 
Council to agree and monitor a minimum number of prudential indicators (including limits 
and statements) which related to affordability, prudence, capital expenditure, external debt 
and treasury management.  The indicators were purely for internal use and were not 
designed to be used as comparators between councils. 
 
The Council was also required to set out its Treasury Management and Investment Strategy 
for borrowing and investment activities and the effective management of associated risks, in 
accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (Cipfa) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management in Public Services, as revised or supplemented by Cipfa 
from time to time. 
 
The following aspects were addressed in the report:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 – 2021/22 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 

 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
(1) Treasury management was defined as the management of the Council’s investment 
and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions, the effective 

Page 47



 
 
 

 

 
8 

control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 
 
(2) The Council was required to operate a balanced budget which meant that cash 
raised during the year would meet cash expenditure.  Part of treasury management was to 
ensure the cash flow was properly planned with cash available when needed.  Surplus 
monies were invested in line with the Council’s low risk preferences. 
 
(3) The second function of treasury management was funding the Council’s capital 
plans.  The plans gave a guide to the future borrowing need of the Council.  The 
management of that longer term cash flow might involve arranging long or short term loans 
or using longer term cash flow surpluses.  Occasionally, outstanding debt might be 
restructured to reduce Council risk or meet cost objectives. 
 
(4) The report had been prepared in line with the Treasury Management Code and 
Guidance (2017) written by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(Cipfa).  In the case of local authorities in England and Wales, the Code was significant 
under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2003.  That required local authorities ‘to 
have regard (a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State might issue, and (b) to such 
other guidance as the Secretary of State might by regulations specify’.  Paragraph 24 of the 
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 required 
local authorities to have regard to that guidance and acceptance of the report fulfilled those 
obligations. 
 
There were no alternative options for consideration or reasons for rejection. 
 
Resolved - That Council be recommended to:- 
 
  (i) Adopt the prudential indicators and limits detailed 

in the report; 
 
  (ii) Approve the Treasury Management Strategy and 

associated indicators, as set out in Section 8 of the 
report;  

 
  (iii) Approve the Investment Strategy, as set out in 

Section 13 of the report;  
 
  (iv) Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

for the year 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 1 of the 
report; 

 
  (v) Approve the Treasury Management Policy 

Statement 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 2 of the 
report;  

 
  (vi) Approve the Treasury Management Practices 

Statement 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 3 of the 
report 

  
   (vii) Approve the Capital Strategy 2019/20, as set out in 

Appendix 4 of the report. 
 
 

298 General Revenue Budget 2019/20 

Page 48



 
 
 

 

 
9 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report setting 
out proposals for the 2019/20 General Fund Revenue Budget.  The report also provided an 
overview of key issues which had arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  The 
decision to set the Budget would be a key decision of the Council and the role of the 
Cabinet was to recommend a proposed Budget to Council.  The 2019/20 Revenue Budget 
required a net expenditure of £10,995,000 and under the budget proposals, Council Tax for 
Hyndburn residents would rise by £5.00 per year for a band D property.  The amounts due 
for each band are shown in Appendix 4 of the report.  Altham Parish Council had issued a 
separate precept requirement for its activities but does not intend to increase its precept.  
The following information was attached to the report:- 
 
Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2019/20 
Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2019/20 
Appendix 3  -  Saving Proposals 2019/20 
Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2019/20 by Property Band 
Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2019/20 
Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2019/20 by Property Valuation Band 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The recommendations in the report provided an appropriate platform on which the Cabinet 
could recommend a Budget for the Council which met the objectives and key priorities of 
the people of Hyndburn. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wide number of individual proposals had been put forward to produce a Balanced Budget.  
Options had been rejected on a variety of grounds including policy objectives, practicalities 
and the potential for additional costs to be incurred.  Further options might be presented at 
the Council meeting on 21st February 2019. 

Resolved (1) That an increase in Council Tax for 2019/20 by £5.00 per 
year for a Band D property be recommended.  This 
would be equivalent to less than 10 pence per week and 
as most households in Hyndburn are Band A rather 
than Band D properties, the vast majority of households 
would only see a rise of 7p per week.   That this would 
be only the third increase in Council Tax by Hyndburn 
Council in 10 years; 

 (2) That the Budget for 2019/20 would therefore be 
£10,995,000 as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2; 

 (3) That it be recommended that the list of savings and 
budget changes for 2019/20, as set out in Appendix 3 of 
the report, be approved;  

 (4) That the significant improvements made in relation to 
budget monitoring and cost reduction within the 
Authority over the past 15 years be noted and the 
commitment to continuing that approach in the year 
ahead be confirmed;  

Page 49



 
 
 

 

 
10 

 (5) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2019/20, the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council) for 
technical reasons, such as the restructuring of cost 
centres, the re-apportionment and re-allocation of 
overheads, etc., provided such amendments had an 
overall neutral impact on the Budget;  

 (6) That it be recommended that during the financial year 
2019/20 the Deputy Chief Executive be delegated 
responsibility to amend the Budget (following 
consultation with the Leader of the Council) should the 
estimate of Business Rates not be sufficiently accurate, 
by drawing on reserves if needed or paying over 
additional contributions to reserves;  

                              (7) That to aid future financial management planning, any 
surpluses generated during 2019/20 be set aside to help 
the Council to reduce its cost base over the next three 
years, support its long term capital programme or 
strengthen its overall reserve position;  and,  

 (8) That it be recommended that the New Homes Bonus and 
any additional unring-fenced funding from the 
Government, as well as any further surplus on the 
Collection Fund, can be used if required to support 
Capital expenditure as determined by the Deputy Chief 
Executive in the overall financing of capital expenditure 
or be transferred to Reserves. 

 
 

299 Capital Programme 2019/20 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report inviting 
Cabinet to consider the Council’s capital investment priorities for 2019/20 and to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 21st       
February 2019, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s 
capital and revenue resources.  A Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £2,070,128 was 
appended to the report.   
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The schemes represented the best value for money and met the Council’s overall corporate 
policy objectives, within the funding envelop for the year. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
A wider programme of funding had not been considered due to the Council’s policy 
commitment to limiting Capital Expenditure to affordable levels and seeking to repay debt. 

Resolved - That the following proposals be submitted to Council:-  

Page 50



 
 
 

 

 
11 

  (1) A Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £2,070,128 as 
set out in Appendix 1 of the report;  

  (2) That the Programme be funded by anticipated 
direct external grants of £1,235,128 and £835,000 of new 
investment from the Council’s resources.  External 
grant funding must be secured before any internal 
funds are committed to projects that rely on external 
funding to proceed;  

  (3) That authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources, to flex the programme in accordance with 
the available funding, provided that does not require 
any additional borrowing;  

  (4) That the individual projects within the Capital 
Programme require the written authorisation of the 
Deputy Chief Executive, following consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Resources, before commencing and 
incurring expenditure and that Service Managers 
provide the Deputy Chief Executive with written details 
of estimated costs of schemes with full justification of 
the need and benefits from undertaking the capital 
investments before approval was provided and that 
approval to commence be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Resources;  

  (5) That projects be timed to minimise the need for 
borrowing and the Deputy Chief Executive be requested 
to seek project start dates after September 2019 
whenever that was practical;  and,  

  (6) That in-year underspends are not made available 
to fund new projects during the year. 

 
300 Exclusion of the Public 

 

Resolved - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within 
the Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at 
the item. 

 
The following item was submitted as urgent business with the Chair’s agreement in 
accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the reason being to 
ensure the latest up to date information was included in the report. 
 
 

301 Proposed Disposal of the Council's Land Known as Clayton Triangle 
 

Page 51



 
 
 

 

 
12 

Exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, Paragraph 3 – 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information) 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Housing and Regeneration submitted an exempt report to 
seek Cabinet approval for the disposal of the Council’s interest in the land known as 
Clayton Triangle. 
 
Approval of the report was not deemed a key decision. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The reasons for the decision were set out in the exempt report. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
The alternative options considered and reasons for rejection were set out in the exempt 
report. 

Resolved - That the recommendations as set out in the report be 
approved. 

 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 52



 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
Wednesday, 23rd January, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), 

Councillors Loraine Cox (Vice Chair), Judith Addison, Mohammad Ayub, 
Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Melissa Fisher, 
June Harrison, Marlene Haworth, Dave Parkins, Kath Pratt and 
Paddy Short 
 

Apologies: Councillors Abdul Khan 

  

 
281 Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Abdul Khan. 
 
Councillor Mohammad Ayub acted as substitute representative for Councillor Khan. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations.  
              
 

282 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 12th December 2018, were 
submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

283 Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out recommended 
action on the following planning applications. 
 
Resolved  - (1) (a) That the following planning application be refused  

contrary to Officer recommendation as per the report on the grounds of 
harmful overbearing appearance and impact on the surrounding 
neighbourhood, and:-   

 
- (b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief Planning and 
Transportation Officer to draft reasons for refusal and issue any 
associated enforcement action.  

 
11/18/0457 Springview, All Springs Close, Great Harwood, BB6 7SD. 

Erection of single storey extension to existing annexe (Retrospective) 
 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s  

attention to the extra information contained within the update report which  
was released before the meeting and related to the above planning  
application. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10.



 
 
 

 

 
 

 2. Mrs Muhsen spoke at the Committee in support of the above planning  
application and in favour of the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning  
permission. 

 
3. County Councillor Miles Parkinson spoke in objection of the above planning  
application and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning  
permission. 

 
 
Resolved  - (2) (a) That the following planning application be refused  

contrary to Officer recommendation as per the report on the grounds of 
unacceptable adverse impact on local amenities and residents 
including  noise and parking problems along with an increase in 
cooking odour smells:-   

 
- (b) That delegated authority be granted to the Chief Planning and 
Transportation Officer to draft reasons for refusal. 

 
11/18/0458 59 Plantation Street, Accrington, BB5 6RZ. 

Change of use from A1 (Retail) to A5 (Take Away) 
 
N.B. 1. The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer drew the Committee’s  

attention to the extra information contained within the update report which was 
released before the meeting and related to the above planning application. 

 
 2. Mr Humphrey spoke at the Committee in objection of the above planning  

application and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve planning 
permission. 

 
3. Peel Ward Councillor Joyce Plummer spoke in objection of the above  
planning application and against the Officer’s recommendation to approve  
planning permission. 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 54



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Tuesday, 12th February, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Jenny Molineux (in the Chair),  

Councillors Noordad Aziz, Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Stephen Button, 
Terry Hurn and Tim O'Kane 
Co-optees: Bernard Dawson 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Tony Dobson, Leader of the Conservative Group 
Councillor Miles Parkinson, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Joyce Plummer, Portfolio Holder for Resources 
Councillor: June Harrison 
 

 Two members of the Public, Mr N. Collingridge & Ms K. Whitehead and 
two member of the media. 
 

 
302 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
It was reported that Councillor Noordad Aziz would be attending after the meeting had 
started due to a personal appointment. 
 
There were no substitute representatives. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

303 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 1st November 
2018 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record. 
 

304 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources (Councillor Joyce Plummer) submitted a report giving 
the Council’s Medium Term Financial Position for 2019/20 to 2021/22.  The Strategy was 
attached to the report and set out the three year projections of income and spending for the 
Council ahead of formulating its savings plans so it could set an Annual Budget for 2019/20.   
 
Appendix 1 of the Strategy set out a standard model and further scenarios were provided in 
Appendix 2 with a pessimistic model and Appendix 3 detailing an optimistic model, all for 
2019/20 and 2021/22. 
The figures in Appendix 1 however remained the current best estimate of the likely financial 
position over the next three years.  The report addressed the following aspects and had 
been submitted to Cabinet on 6th February 2019:- 
 

 Introduction 

 Objectives 

 Elements of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 

Page 55



 
 
 

 

 
 

 Service Planning to Support Overall Strategy 

 Integrated Resource Planning with Service Plans 

 Background Information 

 Financial Analysis 2019/20 to 2021/22 

 Resources 

 Government Grant 

 Business Rates 

 Council Tax 

 Expected loss of income 

 Changes in Costs 

 Growth 

 Reserves 

 Other Assumptions 

 Equality Impact Assessment 

 Scenarios 

 Robustness of Forecast 

 Overall Net Position 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Joyce Plummer to the advanced  
questions submitted, which included: 

 

 Our MTFS is a 3 year strategy. Some Council’s operate a 5 year strategy. Would 
there be any benefits to moving to a 5 year strategy? 

 With regards to the 75% business rates pilot: 
- When will we know if the application is successful? 
- How much extra income is this predicted to bring in? 
- Are there any plans for how the increased income will be spent? 

With regards to the 75% business rates pilot: 

 Universal credit – can you explain the reasoning behind the potential increased 
£80k deficit in the pessimistic scenario (as detailed on page 33). 

 There was an article regarding district councils receiving grants of £35k to prepare 
for a no deal brexit. How does Hyndburn plan to spend this? 

 
A member of the public present at the meeting asked would the Council need to use money 
from reserves. The Leader of the Council responded and this would be the worst case 
scenario.  
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

305 Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management & Investment Strategy 2019/2020 to 
2021/2022 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out the Council’s policy and 
objectives with respect to treasury management, to explain how it would achieve its 
objectives and manage its activities and to agree an investment strategy for 2019/20.   
 
The report detailed the minimum revenue provision policy statement 2019/20, the treasury 
management policy statement 2019/20 with appendix 3 containing the HBC Treasury 
Management Practices 2019/20. 
 
A response was provided by Councillor Joyce Plummer to the advanced question  
submitted, which asked: 
 

Page 56



 
 
 

 

 
 

 You will be aware that Scrutiny have currently established a panel to carry out a 
green review. With this in mind, does the Council prioritise green or ethical 
investments in its investment strategy? If not, would this be a policy the Council 
would consider adopting? 

 
The report addressed the following aspects and had been submitted to Cabinet on 6th 
February 2019:- 
 

 Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing Requirement 

 Estimated Capital Expenditure 

 Minimum Revenue Provision 

 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

 Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 – 2021/22 

 External Debt Overall Limits 

 External v Internal Borrowing 

 Limits on Activity 

 Debt Rescheduling 

 Investment Strategy 

 Treasury Management Practices (TMP) 

 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers 

 Treasury Management Strategy In-Year and Year End Reporting 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

306 General Revenue Budget 2019/20 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for the 2019/20 
General Fund Revenue Budget which also provided an overview of key issues which had 
arisen from the Medium Term Financial Strategy.   
 
The 2019/20 Revenue Budget required a net expenditure of £10,995,000 under the budget 
proposals detailed in appendices 1 and 2 of the report. 
 
Council Tax for Hyndburn residents would rise for Hyndburn Council provided services by 
£5.00 per year for a Band D property.  Altham Parish Council had set a separate precept for 
its activities and there was no increase on its charge. 
 
The following information was attached to the report, which had been submitted to Cabinet 
on 6th February 2019:-   

 Appendix 1  -  Initial Outline Budget 2019/20 

 Appendix 2  -  Revenue Budget 2019/20 

 Appendix 3  -  Savings Proposals 2019/20 

 Appendix 4  -  Hyndburn Borough Council Tax Increase 2019/20 by Property Band 

 Appendix 5  -  Overall Change in Council Tax 2019/20 

 Appendix 6  -  Altham Parish Precept 2019/20 by Property Valuation Band 
 
A number of responses were provided by Councillor Joyce Plummer to the advanced  
questions submitted, which included: 
 

 How does our proposed Council tax increase compare with other Councils? 

 How much additional income could we generate if we increased council tax by the 
maximum allowed? 

Page 57



 
 
 

 

 
 

 With regards to the new homes bonus, are there any plans to look at small 
developers developing small sites rather than focus on large scale developments 
only? 

 
The following questions related to individual savings items identified in Appendix 3 and  
responses were given to the issues raised by the Committee: 
 

 Have any savings been identified through reduced cleansing costs as a direct result 
of the new recycling system? 

 Appendix 3 shows the proposed savings. Can you provide the actual previous 
budget and proposed new budget for each line on appendix 3? 

 Additional income has been identified through crematorium and commercial 
services in waste services? Can you provide more info on this and is there potential 
for increased income generation across other areas of the Council? 

 
Questions were also asked from members of the public in attendance at the meeting 
in relation to: 
 

 Savings on street sweepers with no agency staff working. 

 Are we still subsidising Hyndburn Leisure. 
 
Resolved - That the contents of the report be noted and supported. 
 

307 General Fund Capital Programme 2019/20 
 
The Portfolio Holder for Resources submitted a report relating to the Council’s capital 
investment priorities for 2019/20 and asked Cabinet on the 6th February 2019 to 
recommend to the Council a capital programme for approval at its meeting on 21st February 
2019, having regard to key linkages between the management of the Council’s capital and 
revenue resources.   
 
A Capital Programme for 2019/20 of £2,070,128 gross was attached to the report in 
Appendix 1.   
 
Responses were given to the following questions raised by the Committee:-  
 

 £35,000 has been allocated for a CCTV upgrade. Is this investment wise when it 
seems the police have limited resources to act upon intelligence from CCTV for 
many crimes? 

 With regards to DFGs, this committee carried out a review approximately 18 months 
ago, and it was found that a lack of Occupational Therapists at LCC was a major 
issue in holding up the award of grants. Is this still an issue, and if so, are claimants 
obligated to use LCC Occupational Therapists for assessments or are there other 
options? 

 Money has been allocated for Broadway resurfacing, and in last year’s capital 
budget there was further significant investment in Accrington Town Centre. Are 
there plans for future capital programme investment in other Town Centres such as 
Union Road in Oswaldtwistle, Queen Street in Great Harwood and High Street in 
Rishton? 

 Several thousand is allocated to Christmas decorations/lights each year. Has the 
Council considered seeking sponsorship from local business for Christmas lights? 

 
Questions were also asked from members of the public in attendance at the meeting  
in relation to: 

Page 58



 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 Buildings not in a good state of repair (Clayton Civic Hall) 

 Mercer Park Capital investment was made via the Friends of Mercer Park Group 
and not just HBC funding. 

 
Resolved - (1) That the contents of the report be noted and 

supported, and:- 
 
 - (2) That the Committee recommends the establishment 

of a Cross Party Working Group to look at resolving any 
issues associated with the Disabled Facility Grants 
Process 

 
308 Opposition Group- Budget Proposals 2019-20 

 
The Leader of the Opposition (Conservative Group), Councillor Tony Dobson reported that 
no alternative proposals for the Council’s 2019/20 Budget would be submitted. 
 
He would continue to work with the controlling group and one idea was for street sweepers 
to spray weed killer rather than wait for the service provided by LCC which only occurred 
twice a year.  
 
Resolved - That no budget proposals to the Committee by the 

Opposition (Conservative) Group be noted and the 
Leader of the Conservative Group be thanked for his 
contribution to the discussions of the Committee. 

 
309 The Leader of the Council to receive Representations and Questions from Members 

of the Public and Individual Members of the Council on the Budget 
 
Members of the Public had been invited to attend the meeting to hear about budget 
proposals and to ask questions about the budget if they so wished.  Two residents were in 
attendance and a number of questions had been asked during the relevant agenda item. 
The Leader of the Council had responded with information to the issues raised during each 
item of the meeting. 
 

310 Summary of Overview and Scrutiny Comments and Resolutions to be presented to 
Council 
 
The Chair referred to the need to submit a summary of the discussions held and decisions 
reached during the meeting of the Committee to full Council on the 21st February 2019. 

Resolved - That Council be requested to note the following 
resolutions of the Committee:- 

  (1) That the contents of the following reports be 
noted:- 

  -Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 

  -Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management & 
Investment Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 

  -General Fund Revenue Budget 2019/20 

  -General Fund Capital Programme 2019/20 

Page 59



 
 
 

 

 
 

  (2) That the Committee thanks the Leader of the 
Council, Portfolio Holder for Resources and Leader of 
the Opposition for their participation in the scrutiny 
meeting and debate. 

  (3) That the HBC Deputy Chief Executive and all other 
Officers involved, be commended for their work in 
producing the budget. 

  (4) That the Committee recommends the 
establishment of a Cross Party Working Group to look 
at resolving any issues associated with the Disabled 
Facility Grants Process. 

  (5) That having reviewed and debated the budget 
submitted, the contents of the revenue and capital 
budget reports be supported as outlined. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 60



 
 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 4th March, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, Stewart Eaves, 
Tim O'Kane and Dave Parkins 
Co-optees: Lisa Allen, Jean Battle, Sara Britcliffe, Stewart Eaves, 
Tim O'Kane and Dave Parkins 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Loraine Cox, Paul Cox and Joyce Plummer 

  

Apologies: Councillors Stephen Button, Terry Hurn and Jenny Molineux 
 

 
324 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Stephen Button, Terry Hurn and 
Jenny Molineux. 
 
Councillors Dave Parkins, Sara Britcliffe and Stewart Eaves attended the meeting as 
substitute representatives for Councillors Button, Hurn and J. Molineux.  
 
The Chair reported information for Members awareness rather than a declaration of 
interest, as he worked for Irwell Valley Housing Association in Manchester. He had spoken 
to the Chief Executive of the organisation and had been given verbal assurances that they 
were not interested in the Clayton Triangle site nor any other location in Hyndburn.  
 
Councillor Dave Parkins commented that he was a tenant of Onward Homes although there 
was no mention of them in the report attached to the agenda.  
 

325 Call-In Procedure Note 
 
The Procedure to be followed at the meeting in relation to call-ins was submitted and 
attention was drawn to Paragraph 8 which set out the options available to the Committee 
when reaching a decision on the undermentioned call-in. 
 
Resolved - That the Procedure be received and applied to the  

undermentioned call-in. 
 

326 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved   - That, in accordance with Section 100A(4)  Local  

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during the following item, when it was likely, in 
view of the nature of the proceedings that there would 
otherwise be disclosure of exempt information within the 
Paragraph at Schedule 12A of the Act specified at the 
item. 

 
 

Page 61



 
 
 

 

 
 

327 Call-In of Cabinet Decision - Proposed Disposal of the Council's Land Known as 
Clayton Triangle 
 
The Chair informed the Committee that the purpose of the meeting was to consider a 
recommendation arising from the meeting of the Cabinet held on the 6th February 2019, 
when it had been resolved:- 
 
(1) That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report proposing the disposal of 
the land Council’s interest in the land known as Clayton Triangle be approved;   
 
The following documents were submitted:- 
 
i) Call-In Form 
ii) Copy of the Cabinet Report (Exempt) dated 6th February 2019, Proposed disposal of 

the Council’s Land known as the Clayton Triangle 
iii) Extract from Minutes of Cabinet dated 6th February 2019 relating to Item 15, 

Proposed disposal of the Council’s Land known as the Clayton Triangle 
 
In accordance with the Call-In Procedure for Cabinet Decisions, the Procedure had been 
activated by members of the Committee (The Chair Councillor Noordad Aziz, Councillors 
Jean Battle and Tim O’Kane). 
 
The undermentioned reason was given for the call-in:- 
 
“To review the process of the Cabinet recommendation of disposal, to make sure this is for 
the benefit of the Borough and best financial value”. 
 
The call-in related to the following:- 
 
What was Cabinet’s recommendation based on and did it include the wider market 
conditions. 
 
The Sponsor spoke on the reasons for the call-in. 
 
The Deputy Leader of the Council (Councillor Paul Cox) spoke on the reasons for the 
decision taken by Cabinet. 
 
The Chair invited the Committee to ask questions of the Deputy Leader and responses 
were given to the advanced questions submitted and concerns raised:- 
 
The Sponsor took the opportunity to sum up and the Executive Director for Legal and 
Democratic Services outlined the three options available to the Committee in reaching a 
decision on the call-in.  The Committee discussed and voted on those options. 
 
Resolved - (1) That the Cabinet decision be released in full for 

implementation. 
 
 - (2) That Cabinet noted the concerns of Overview & 

Scrutiny and that Cabinet ensures that the Council’s 
processes for marketing sites for disposal  are designed 
to reach a wide range of potential purchasers and that 
there is Ward Councillor involvement in the sale of 
Council land and property. 

 
 

Page 62



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Council   

DATE: 21 March 2019 

REPORT AUTHOR: Susan Gardner, Senior Corporate Support Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Motions for debate at Council: –  

East Lancashire Unitary Authority 

 

EXEMPT REPORT:  No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
 
 
Council will be asked to consider the following motions submitted under Council Procedure Rule A9:- 
 
1. East Lancashire Unitary Authority 
 
That this Council resolved to enter into 1st stage negotiations with the Secretary of State for Local 
Government and the other borough Council Leaders to explore the benefits of an East Lancashire 
Unitary Authority and that a Final decision to join the East Lancashire Unitary Authority is made by the 
Council. 
 
Proposer: Councillor Tony Dobson 
Seconder: Councillor Michael Miller 
 
Submitted on: 13th March 2019 
 
 
 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Confirmation of Minutes
	6. Draft Pay Policy
	draft pay policy 2019

	7. Appointment of Co-Optees
	8. Sale of Clayton Triangle site - update from Overview & Scrutiny Committee Call-in
	9. Minutes of Cabinet
	Minutes , 06/02/2019 Cabinet

	10. Minutes of Committees
	Minutes , 12/02/2019 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes , 04/03/2019 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	11. Motion(s) submitted on Notice

